From: Baer, Diane

To: Rardin. Andrew; Cole, Joshua
Cc: Barker, Sheila
Subject: APPROVED Insurance: Clean Harbors Environmental Services, Inc. / Expires 11/1/25
Date: Thursday, May 8, 2025 11:51:26 AM
Attachments: imaqge001.png
image002.png

CleanHarborsinc - Client Pack - 3951192.PDF

SNOH CNTY ARFF AGREEMENT RFP-25-0424BC ARFF Truck Cleaning - Attachment B - Pro Forma Aareement
Clean Harbours acr revisions.docx

image004.png

The insurance is approved through 11/1/2025.

Diane Baer, ARM

Snohomish County Finance | Risk Management Division | Insurance & Contracts
3000 Rockefeller Ave M/S 610 | Everett, WA 98201-4046

O: (425) 388-3760 | Fax: (425) 388-3499 | diane.baer@snoco.org

NOTICE: All emails and attachments sent to and from Snohomish County are public records and may be subject to
disclosure pursuant to the Public Records Act (RCW 42.56)

HOURS: 7:30AM — 4:00PM
WORK REMOTELY: MON, WED, FRI
IN OFFICE: TUES, THURS

From: Barker, Sheila <Sheila.Barker@co.snohomish.wa.us>
Sent: Thursday, May 8, 2025 10:45 AM

To: Baer, Diane <Diane.Baer@co.snohomish.wa.us>
Subject: Fw: Contract Documents Updated

FYI

Get Outlook for i0OS

From: Rardin, Andrew <andrew.rardin@co.snohomish.wa.us>
Sent: Tuesday, May 6, 2025 5:52:26 PM

To: Barker, Sheila <Sheila.Barker@co.snohomish.wa.us>
Subject: FW: Contract Documents Updated

Shelia

Good morning, hope all is well. You will see an ECAF come through maybe later this week
or early next week on the ARFF Truck Cleaning Contract. The status with the contract is
that | need to get a funding code from our Finance Team, then send the contract for Clean
Harbor signature.

I've attached the insurance documents from Clean Harbors along with the contract.

Please let me know if you have any concerns or questions.

Thanks
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https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Faka.ms%2Fo0ukef&data=05%7C02%7Candrew.rardin%40co.snohomish.wa.us%7C293a7a327310472473da08dd8e612161%7C6bd456aabc074218897c4d0a6a503ee2%7C0%7C0%7C638823270854431306%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=X07ehFaFzlvVWZ2l%2Bpb14m1d5hkwS0XTPY02z6%2BvF8g%3D&reserved=0
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

Page 1 of 3

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
05/06/2025

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND,

EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Willis Towers Watson Northeast,
c/o 26 Century Blvd

P.0. Box 305191

Inc.

CONTACT = Fi
NAME-: WTW Certificate Center

Ol FAX
PHONE 1-877-945-7378 (AIC. No): 1-888-467-2378

(AIC, No, Ext):
E-MAIL -
ADDREss: certificates@wtwco.com

Nashville, TN 372305191 USA INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INSURER A : Starr Indemnity & Liability Company 38318
INSURED nsUREr B : ACE American Insurance Company 22667
Clean Harbors Environmental Services, Inc. and its Affiliates -
42 Longwater Drive INSURER C :
Norwell, MA 02061 INSURER D :
INSURER E :
INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: W38955344

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL|SUBR POLICY EFF_| POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WWD POLICY NUMBER (MM/DD/YYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 2,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
‘ CLAIMS-MADE - OCCUR PREMISES (Ea occurrence) | $ 1,000,000
A X XCU MED EXP (Any one person) $ 10,000
Y Y
X | Contractual 1000090736241 11/01/2024|11/01/2025 | personal & ADVINJURY | $ 2.000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: L GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 4,000,000
X | poLicy s Loc APPRO VED PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $ 4,000,000
OTHER: $
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY By Diane Baer - Risk Management at 11:47 am, May 08, 2025 | GOVBIRED SINGLELIMIT | ¢ 5,000,000
X | ANY AUTO Ne /| BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
A gl\j\‘lr’\é)ESDONLY iﬁ:}ggULED Y Y 1000679502241 1170172024 |11/01/2025| BODILY INJURY (Per accident)| $
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE S
WILTQS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)
X $
A X | UMBRELLA LIAB X oceur EACH OCCURRENCE $ 10,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE 1000095587241 11/01/2024|11/01/2025| ocGREGATE $ 10,000,000
DED ‘ ‘ RETENTION $ $
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY VIN X ‘ STATUTE ‘ ER 5 000000
A | ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ - 000,
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N/A| Y 1000005137 (AO0S) 11/701/2024|11/01/2025
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $ 2,000,000
If yes, describe under 2.000,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | $ 000,
A | Workers Compensation & Empl Liab Y 1000005140 11/01/2024|11/01/2025 |[E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $2,000,000
(AK, AZ, 1A, NJ, NY, NC, VT, CT) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMR $2,000,000
Per Statute E.L. DISEASE-POL LMT |$2,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

Scope of Work: All Operations of Named Insured.

Umbrella is follow form over the General Liability, Auto Liability, and Employer®s Liability.

SEE ATTACHED

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Snohomish County Paine Field Airport
3200 100th St Sw

Everett, WA 98204

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Pitrsio O Femy

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
SR 1D: 27728692

© 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

BATCH: 3951192



sbfdcb

Approved





AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:

LOC #:
Y
ACORD’ ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 2 of 3

Clean Harbors Environmental Services, Inc. and its Affiliates

Willis Towers Watson Northeast, Inc. -
42 Longwater Drive

POLICY NUMBER Norwell, MA 02061

See Page 1

CARRIER NAIC CODE

See Page 1 See Page 1| ErrecTiVE DATE: See Page 1

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM
FORM NUMBER: 25 FORM TITLE: Certificate of Liability Insurance

The County, its officers, officials, employees, and agents are named as an Additional Insureds for General Liability,
Contractor®™s Pollution Liability and Auto Liability as their interests may appear if required by written contract but
only with respect to liability arising out of operations of the Named Insured.

It is further agreed that the General Liability, Contractor®s Pollution Liability and Auto Liability shall be Primary
and Non-contributory with any other insurance in force for or which may be purchased by Additional insureds.

It is understood and agreed that the company waives its right of subrogation which may arise by reason of a payment of
claim under the General Liability, Contractor®s Pollution Liability, Auto Liability and Worker®s Compensation policy as
required by written contract where allowed by state law.

Umbrella is excess of the General Liability, Auto Liability, and Employer®s Liability.

INSURER AFFORDING COVERAGE: Starr Indemnity & Liability Company NAIC#: 38318
POLICY NUMBER: 1000005138 (MA, FL) EFF DATE: 11/01/2024 EXP DATE: 11/01/2025

SUBROGATION WAIVED: Y

TYPE OF INSURANCE: LIMIT DESCRIPTION: LIMIT AMOUNT:

Workers Compensation E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $2,000,000

& Employers Liability E.L. DISEASE - EA EMP $2,000,000

Per Statute E.L. DISEASE-POL LMT $2,000,000

INSURER AFFORDING COVERAGE: Starr Indemnity & Liability Company NAIC#: 38318
POLICY NUMBER: 1000679513241 EFF DATE: 11/01/2024 EXP DATE: 11/01/2025

ADDITIONAL INSURED: Y

SUBROGATION WAIVED: Y

TYPE OF INSURANCE: LIMIT DESCRIPTION: LIMIT AMOUNT:

Auto Liability (MA) CSL (Ea accident) $5,000,000

Any Auto, Owned Autos only, MCS-90

Hired Autos only, Non-owned Autos only

ACORD 101 (2008/01) © 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

SR ID: 27728692 BATCH: 3951192 CERT: W38955344
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ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE

LOC #:

3

Page 3 of

AGENCY

Willis Towers Watson Northeast, Inc.

POLICY NUMBER
See Page 1

CARRIER NAIC CODE

NAMED INSURED R R
Clean Harbors Environmental Services,

42 Longwater Drive
Norwell, MA 02061

Inc. and its Affiliates

See Page 1 See Page 1

EFFECTIVE DATE: See Page 1

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,
FORM NUMBER: 25

FORM TITLE: Certificate of Liability Insurance

INSURER AFFORDING COVERAGE: ACE American Insurance Company
POLICY NUMBER: COO - G27416603 010 EFF DATE: 11/01/2024

ADDITIONAL INSURED:
SUBROGATION WAIVED:

Y
Y

TYPE OF INSURANCE:
Contractor®s Pollution Liability

LIMIT DESCRIPTION:
Per Poll"n Condition
Aggregate Limit

SIR

INSURER AFFORDING COVERAGE: ACE American Insurance Company
POLICY NUMBER: COO - G27416603 010 EFF DATE: 11/01/2024

TYPE OF INSURANCE:
Professional Liability

LIMIT DESCRIPTION:
Per Wrongful Act
Aggregate Limit
SIR

NAIC#: 22667
EXP DATE: 11/01/2025

LIMIT AMOUNT:
$10,000,000
$10,000,000
$250,000

NAIC#: 22667
EXP DATE: 11/01/2025

LIMIT AMOUNT:
$10,000,000
$10,000,000
$250,000

ACORD 101 (2008/01)

© 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

SR ID: 27728692

BATCH: 3951192

CERT: W38955344
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L/ Starr Indemnity & Liability Company
Dallas, TX 1-866-519-2522

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION
FOR THIRD PARTIES
AMENDATORY ENDORSEMENT

Policy Number: 1000679502241 Effective Date: 11/1/2024

Named Insured: Clean Harbors, Inc.

This endorsement modifies the insurance coverage form(s) listed below that have been purchased by you and
evidenced as such on the Declarations page. Please read the endorsement and respective policy(ies) carefully.

Auto Dealers Coverage Form, Business Auto Coverage Form, Business Auto Physical Damage
Coverage Form, Commercial General Liability Coverage Form, Contractor’s Pollution Liability
Coverage Form, Electronic Data Liability Coverage Form, Excess Liability Policy Form, Garage
Coverage Form, Liquor Liability Coverage Form, Motor Carrier Coverage Form, Owners And
Contractors Protective Liability Coverage Form-Coverage For Operations Of Designated
Contractor, Pollution Liability Coverage Form Designated Sites, Products/Completed Operations
Liability Coverage Form, Product Withdrawal Coverage Form, Professional Liability Coverage Form,
Railroad Protective Liability Coverage Form, Site Pollution Liability Coverage Form, Special
Protective And Highway Liability Policy-New York Department Of Transportation, Truckers
Coverage Form, Underground Storage Tank Policy Designated Tanks.

It is agreed that in the event the “Insurer” cancels the policy for any reason other than non-payment of premium,
the “First Named Insured” must, within five (5) days of receiving the notice of cancellation, provide the “Insurer”,
either directly or through the retail broker, with a written list of certificate holder(s) (“Schedule”) that the “First
Named Insured” is contractually obligated to notify in the event that the policy is cancelled. The “Schedule” must
specify the name and current email address of a contact for each certificate holder.

The "Insurer" will provide notice at least 30 days prior to cancellation date to the certificate holder(s)
listed in the "Schedule" by email.

L]

This notification of a pending cancellation of coverage is intended as a courtesy only. The “Insurer’s” failure to
provide such notice will neither extend the policy cancellation nor negate cancellation of the policy; nor will this
failure result in obligation or liability of any kind upon the “Insurer”, its agents or representatives.

This endorsement does not affect, in any way, coverage provided under this policy, the cancellation of this policy
or the effective date of cancellation.

The following definitions apply to this endorsement:
1. “First Named Insured” means the named insured shown in the Declarations Page of this policy.
2. “Insurer” means the insurance company shown in the header on the Declarations Page of this policy.
3. “Schedule” means the written list of certificate holder(s).

All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged.
Manuscript (1022) Page 1 of 1

Copyright © Starr Indemnity & Liability Company. All rights reserved.
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission.





i J’ . . age
L/ Starr Indemnity & Liability Company
Dallas, TX 1-866-519-2522

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION
FOR THIRD PARTIES
AMENDATORY ENDORSEMENT

Policy Number: 1000679513241 Effective Date: 11/1/2024

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

Policy Number: 1000090736241 Effective Date: 11/01/2024  at 12:01 A.M.
Named Insured:

This endorsement modifies the insurance coverage form(s) listed below that have been purchased by you and
evidenced as such on the Declarations page. Please read the endorsement and respective policy(ies) carefully.

Commercial General Liability Coverage Form, Electronic Data Liability Coverage Form, Liquor
Liability Coverage Form, Owners And Contractors Protective Liability Coverage Form-Coverage
For Operations Of Designated Contractor, Pollution Liability Coverage Form Desighated Sites,
Products/Completed Operations Liability Coverage Form, Product Withdrawal Coverage Form,
Railroad Protective Liability Coverage Form, Underground Storage Tank Policy Designated Tanks.

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





POLICY NUMBER: 1000090736241 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CG 20261219

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED — DESIGNATED
PERSON OR ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s) Or Organization(s):
Where Required By Written Contract

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these

A. Section Il — Who Is An Insured is amended to . . X X
additional insureds, the following is added to

CG20261219

include as an additional insured the person(s) or
organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only
with respect to liability for "bodily injury”, "property
damage" or "personal and advertising injury"
caused, in whole or in part, by your acts or
omissions or the acts or omissions of those acting

on your behalf:

1. In the performance of your ongoing operations;
or

2. In connection with your premises owned by or
rented to you.

However:

1. The insurance afforded to such additional
insured only applies to the extent permitted by
law; and

2. If coverage provided to the additional insured is
required by a contract or agreement, the
insurance afforded to such additional insured
will not be broader than that which you are
required by the contract or agreement to
provide for such additional insured.

© Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012

Section Il — Limits Of Insurance:

If coverage provided to the additional insured is
required by a contract or agreement, the most we
will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the
amount of insurance:

1. Required by the contract or agreement; or

2. Available wunder the applicable limits of
insurance;

whichever is less.
This endorsement shall not increase the
applicable limits of insurance.

Page 1 of 1





STARR INDEMNITY & LIABILITY COMPANY
A MEMBER OF STARR COMPANIES

Dallas, TX 1-866-519-2522

WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY INSURANCE POLICY WC 99 06 18
(Ed. 4-15)

AMENDMENT — 30 DAY NOTICE OF CANCELLATION FOR THIRD PARTIES

We agree to give thirty (30) days’ notice of cancellation to the following certificate holder(s) in the event that
we cancel the policy for any reason other than non-payment of premium:

SCHEDULE

WHERE REQUIRED BY WRITTEN CONTRACT

We will endeavor to provide advice of cancellation (the “Advice”) to the certificate holders listed in the schedule
by e-mail. Certificate holders include only those entities for which thirty (30) days’ notice of cancellation is
required by an “insured contract” but only with respect to an entity for which you are directly or indirectly
performing your work.

This advance notification of a pending cancellation of coverage is intended as a courtesy only. Our failure to
provide such Advice will neither extend the policy cancellation nor negate cancellation of the policy; nor will
such failure result in obligation or liability of any kind upon us, our agents or representatives.

This endorsement does not affect, in any way, coverage provided under this policy, the cancellation of this
policy or the effective date of cancellation.

This endorsement changes the policy to which it is attached and is effective on the date issued unless otherwise stated.

(The information below is required only when this endorsement is issued subsequent to preparation of the policy.)

Endorsement Effective: 11/01/2024 Policy No.: 100 0005137 Endorsement No.:
Insured: CLEAN HARBORS, INC. Premium:

Insurance Company: Starr Indemnity & Liability Co Countersigned by:

WC 99 06 18

(Ed. 4-15) Page 2 of 14

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

Endorsement Effective: 11/01/2024 Policy No.: 100 0005140 Endorsement No.:

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

Endorsement Effective: 11/01/2024 Policy No.: 100 0005138 Endorsement No.:
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
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	CONSULTANT:	Clean Harbors

	CONTACT PERSON:	Patricia Kenne

	ADDRESS:	PO Box9149, Norwell MA 02061

	FEDERAL TAX ID NUMBER/U.B.I. NUMBER:	601-690-015

	TELEPHONE/FAX NUMBER:	206-258-0901

	COUNTY DEPT:	Snohomish County Paine Field Airport

	DEPT. CONTACT PERSON:	Fire Chief Joshua Cole

	TELEPHONE/FAX NUMBER:	425-388-5484

	PROJECT:	ARFF Truck Cleaning 2025

	AMOUNT:		$128,289.11

	FUND SOURCE:	__________________________________	Comment by author: Andrew to complete.

	CONTRACT DURATION:	June 1, 2025 through December 31, 2025

		



AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made by and between SNOHOMISH COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Washington (the “County”) and Clean Harbors,  (the “Contractor”). In consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained herein, the parties agree as follows:

Purpose of Agreement; Scope of Services. The purpose of this Agreement is ARFF Vehicle Cleaning. The scope of services is as defined in Schedule A attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof. This Agreement is the product of County RFP No. 25-0424BC, ARFF Vehicle Cleaning.

The services shall be performed in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement and with generally accepted practices prevailing in the western Washington region in the occupation or industry in which the Contractor practices or operates at the time the services are performed. The Contractor shall perform the work in a timely manner and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. Any materials or equipment used by the Contractor in connection with performing the services shall be of good quality. The Contractor represents that it is fully qualified to perform the services to be performed under this Agreement in a competent and professional manner.

The Contractor will prepare and present status reports and other information regarding performance of the Agreement as the County may request.

Term of Agreement; Time of Performance. This Agreement shall be effective upon June 1, 2025 (the “Effective Date”) and shall terminate on December 31, 2025. The Contractor shall commence work within fifteen (15) calendar days of the Effective Date and shall complete the work required by this Agreement no later than July 31, 2025, PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that the County’s obligations after December 31, 2025 are contingent upon local legislative appropriation of necessary funds for this specific purpose in accordance with the County Charter and applicable law.



Compensation.

A. Services. The County will pay the Contractor for services as and when set forth in Schedule B, which is attached hereto and by this reference made a part of this Agreement.

B. Overhead and Expenses. The Contractor’s compensation for services set forth in Section 3A above includes overhead and expenses and no separate claims for reimbursement of overhead or expenses will be allowed under this Agreement.

	C.	Invoices. Upon completion of the work, the Contractor shall submit to the County a properly executed invoice indicating that all of the work has been performed and the amount of the flat fee due from the County. Subject to Section 8 of this Agreement, the County will pay the invoice within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt.

	D.	Payment. The County’s preferred method of payment under this contract is electronic using the County’s “e-Payable” system with Bank of America. The Contractor is highly encouraged to take advantage of the electronic payment method.

	In order to utilize the electronic payment method, the Contractor shall email SnocoEpayables@snoco.org and indicate it was awarded a contract with Snohomish County and will be receiving payment through the County’s e-Payable process. The Contractor needs to provide contact information (name, phone number and email address). The Contractor will be contacted by a person in the Finance Accounts Payable group and assisted with the enrollment process. This should be done as soon as feasible after County award of a contract or purchase order, but not exceeding ten (10) business days.

	Department approved invoices received in Finance will be processed for payment within seven calendar days for e-Payable contractors. Invoices are processed for payment by Finance two times a week for contractors who have selected the e-Payable payment option.

	In the alternative, if the Contractor does not enroll in the electronic (“e-Payable”) payment method described above, contract payments will be processed by Finance with the issuance of paper checks or, if available, an alternative electronic method. Alternative payment methods, other than e-Payables, will be processed not more than 30 days from receipt of department approved invoices to Finance.

	THE COUNTY MAY MAKE PAYMENTS FOR PURCHASES UNDER THIS CONTRACT USING THE COUNTY’S VISA PURCHASING CARD (PCARD).

	Upon acceptance of payment, the Contractor waives any claims for the goods or services covered by the Invoice. No advance payment shall be made for the goods or services furnished by Contractor pursuant to this Contract.

	E.	Payment Method. In addition to Payment section above, the County may make payments for purchases under this contract using the County’s VISA purchasing card (PCARD).

		Are you willing to accept PCARD payments without any fees or surcharges?

[bookmark: Check2]		 Yes  |_|		No  |X|

	F.	Contract Maximum. Total charges under this Agreement, all fees and expenses included, shall not exceed $128,289.11 for the initial term of this Agreement (excluding extensions or renewals, if any).

Independent Contractor. The Contractor agrees that Contractor will perform the services under this Agreement as an independent contractor and not as an agent, employee, or servant of the County. This Agreement neither constitutes nor creates an employer-employee relationship. The parties agree that the Contractor is not entitled to any benefits or rights enjoyed by employees of the County. The Contractor specifically has the right to direct and control Contractor’s own activities in providing the agreed services in accordance with the specifications set out in this Agreement. The County shall only have the right to ensure performance. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to render the parties partners or joint venturers.

The Contractor shall furnish, employ, and have exclusive control of all persons to be engaged in performing the Contractor’s obligations under this Agreement (the “Contractor personnel”), and shall prescribe and control the means and methods of performing such obligations by providing adequate and proper supervision. Such Contractor personnel shall for all purposes be solely the employees or agents of the Contractor and shall not be deemed to be employees or agents of the County for any purposes whatsoever. With respect to Contractor personnel, the Contractor shall be solely responsible for compliance with all rules, laws and regulations relating to employment of labor, hours of labor, working conditions, payment of wages and payment of taxes, including applicable contributions from Contractor personnel when required by law.

Because it is an independent contractor, the Contractor shall be responsible for all obligations relating to federal income tax, self-employment or FICA taxes and contributions, and all other so-called employer taxes and contributions including, but not limited to, industrial insurance (workers’ compensation). The Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold the County harmless from any and all claims, valid or otherwise, made to the County because of these obligations.

The Contractor assumes full responsibility for the payment of all payroll taxes, use, sales, income, or other form of taxes, fees, licenses, excises, or payments required by any city, county, federal or state legislation which are now or may during the term of the Agreement be enacted as to all persons employed by the Contractor and as to all duties, activities, and requirements by the Contractor in performance of the work under this Agreement. The Contractor shall assume exclusive liability therefor, and shall meet all requirements thereunder pursuant to any rules or regulations that are now or may be promulgated in connection therewith.

Ownership. Any and all data, reports, analyses, documents, photographs, pamphlets, plans, specifications, surveys, films, or any other materials created, prepared, produced, constructed, assembled, made, performed, or otherwise produced by the Contractor or the Contractor’s subcontractors or consultants for delivery to the County under this Agreement shall be the sole and absolute property of the County. Such property shall constitute “work made for hire” as defined by the U.S. Copyright Act of 1976, 17 U.S.C. § 101, and the ownership of the copyright and any other intellectual property rights in such property shall vest in the County at the time of its creation. Ownership of the intellectual property includes the right to copyright, patent, and register, and the ability to transfer these rights. Material which the Contractor uses to perform this Agreement but is not created, prepared, constructed, assembled, made, performed, or otherwise produced for or paid for by the County is owned by the Contractor and is not “work made for hire” within the terms of this Agreement.

Changes. No changes or additions shall be made in this Agreement except as agreed to by both parties, reduced to writing and executed with the same formalities as are required for the execution of this Agreement.

County Contact Person. The assigned contact person (or project manager) for the County for this Agreement shall be:

Name:	Joshua Cole

Title:	Fire Chief 

Department:	Snohomish County Paine Field Airport

Telephone:	(425) 388-5484

Email:	Joshua.cole@snoco.org>

County Review and Approval. When the Contractor has completed any discrete portion of the services, the Contractor shall verify that the work is free from errors and defects and otherwise conforms to the requirements of this Agreement. The Contractor shall then notify the County that said work is complete. The County shall promptly review and inspect the work to determine whether the work is acceptable. If the County determines the work conforms to the requirements of this Agreement, the County shall notify the Contractor that the County accepts the work. If the County determines the work contains errors, omissions, or otherwise fails to conform to the requirements of this Agreement, the County shall reject the work by providing the Contractor with written notice describing the problems with the work and describing the necessary corrections or modifications to same. In such event, the Contractor shall promptly remedy the problem or problems and re-submit the work to the County. The Contractor shall receive no additional compensation for time spent correcting errors. Payment for the work will not be made until the work is accepted by the County. The Contractor shall be responsible for the accuracy of work even after the County accepts the work.

If the Contractor fails or refuses to correct the Contractor’s work when so directed by the County, the County may withhold from any payment otherwise due to the Contractor an amount that the County in good faith believes is equal to the cost the County would incur in correcting the errors, in re-procuring the work from an alternate source, and in remedying any damage caused by the Contractor’s conduct.

Subcontracting and Assignment. The Contractor shall not subcontract, assign, or delegate any of the rights, duties or obligations covered by this Agreement without prior express written consent of the County. Any attempt by the Contractor to subcontract, assign, or delegate any portion of the Contractor’s obligations under this Agreement to another party in violation of the preceding sentence shall be null and void and shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement.

Records and Access; Audit; Ineligible Expenditures. The Contractor shall maintain adequate records to support billings. Said records shall be maintained for a period of seven (7) years after completion of this Agreement by the Contractor. The County or any of its duly authorized representatives shall have access at reasonable times to any books, documents, papers, and records of the Contractor which are directly related to this Agreement for the purposes of making audit examinations, obtaining excerpts, transcripts or copies, and ensuring compliance by the County with applicable laws. Expenditures under this Agreement, which are determined by audit to be ineligible for reimbursement and for which payment has been made to the Contractor, shall be refunded to the County by the Contractor.

Indemnification.

	A.	Professional Liability.

	The Contractor agrees to indemnify the County and, if any funds for this Agreement are provided by the State, the State and their officers, officials, agents and employees from damages and liability for damages, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, court costs, expert witness fees, and other claims-related expenses, arising out of the performance of the Contractor’s professional services under this Agreement, to the extent that such liability is caused by the negligent acts, errors or omissions of the Contractor, its principals, employees or subcontractors. The Contractor has no obligation to pay for any of the indemnitees’ defense-related cost prior to a final determination of liability or to pay any amount that exceeds Contractor’s finally determined percentage of liability based upon the comparative fault of the Contractor, its principals, employees, and subcontractors. For the purpose of this section, the County and the Contractor agree that the County’s and, if applicable, the State’s costs of defense shall be included in the definition of damages above.

	B.	All Other Liabilities Except Professional Liability.

To the maximum extent permitted by law and except to the extent caused by the sole negligence of the County and, if any funds for this Agreement are provided by the State, the State, the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the County and the State, their officers, officials, agents and employees, from and against any and all suits, claims, actions, losses, costs, penalties and damages of whatsoever kind or nature arising out of, in connection with, or incidental to the services and/or deliverables provided by or on behalf of the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor shall assume the defense of the County and, if applicable, the State and their officers and employees in all legal or claim proceedings arising out of, in connection with, or incidental to such services and/or deliverables and shall pay all defense expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, expert fees and costs incurred by the County and, if applicable, the State, on account of such litigation or claims.

The above indemnification obligations shall include, but are not limited to, all claims against the County and, if applicable, the State by an employee or former employee of the Contractor or its subcontractors, and the Contractor, by mutual negotiation, expressly waives all immunity and limitation on liability, as respects only the County and, if applicable, the State, under any industrial insurance act, including Title 51 RCW, other worker's compensation act, disability benefit act, or other employee benefit act of any jurisdiction which would otherwise be applicable in the case of such claim.

In the event that the County or, if applicable, the State incurs any judgment, award and/or cost including attorneys’ fees arising from the provisions of this section, or to enforce the provisions of this section, any such judgment, award, fees, expenses, and costs shall be recoverable from the Contractor.

In addition to injuries to persons and damage to property, the term “claims”, for purposes of this provision, shall include, but not be limited to, assertions that the use or transfer of any software, book, document, report, film, tape, or sound reproduction or material of any kind, delivered hereunder, constitutes an infringement of any copyright, patent, trademark, trade name, and/or otherwise results in an unfair trade practice.

The indemnification, protection, defense and save harmless obligations contained herein shall survive the expiration, abandonment, or termination of this Agreement.

Nothing contained within this provision shall affect or alter the application of any other provision contained within this Agreement.

Insurance Requirements. The Contractor shall procure by the time of execution of this Agreement, and maintain for the duration of this Agreement, (i) insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the services hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or employees, and (ii) a current certificate of insurance and additional insured endorsement when applicable.

	A.	General. Each insurance policy shall be written on an "occurrence" form, except that Professional Liability, Errors, and Omissions coverage, if applicable, may be written on a “claims made” basis. If coverage is approved and purchased on a “claims made” basis, the Contractor warrants continuation of coverage, either through policy renewals or the purchase of an extended discovery period, if such extended coverage is available, for not less than three (3) years from the date of completion of the work which is the subject of this Agreement.

By requiring the minimum insurance coverage set forth in this Section 12, the County shall not be deemed or construed to have assessed the risks that may be applicable to the Contractor under this Agreement. The Contractor shall assess its own risks and, if it deems appropriate and/or prudent, maintain greater limits and/or broader coverage.

	B.	No Limitation on Liability. The Contractor’s maintenance of insurance as required by this Agreement shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Contractor to the coverage provided by such insurance, or otherwise limit the County’s recourse to any remedy available at law or in equity.

	C.	Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance. The Contractor shall maintain coverage at least as broad as, and with limits no less than:

i.	General Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage, and for those policies with aggregate limits, a $2,000,000 aggregate limit. CG 00 01 current edition, including Products and Completed Operations;

ii.	Workers’ Compensation: To meet applicable statutory requirements for workers’ compensation coverage of the state or states of residency of the workers providing services under this Agreement;

	D.	Other Insurance Provisions and Requirements. The insurance coverages required in this Agreement for all liability policies except workers’ compensation and Professional Liability, if applicable, must contain, or must be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

i.	The County, its officers, officials, employees, and agents are to be covered as additional insureds as respects liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the Contractor in connection with this Agreement. Such coverage shall be primary and non-contributory insurance as respects the County, its officers, officials, employees, and agents. Additional Insured Endorsement shall be included with the certificate of insurance, “CG 2026 07/04" or its equivalent is required.

ii.	The Contractor's insurance coverage shall apply separately to each insured against whom a claim is made and/or lawsuit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

[bookmark: OLE_LINK3][bookmark: OLE_LINK4]iii.	Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to, and approved by, the County. The deductible and/or self-insured retention of the policies shall not limit or apply to the Contractor's liability to the County and shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor.

iv.	Insurance coverage must be placed with insurers with a Best’s Underwriting Guide rating of no less than A:VIII, or, if not rated in the Best’s Underwriting Guide, with minimum surpluses the equivalent of Best’s surplus size VIII. Professional Liability, Errors and Omissions insurance coverage, if applicable, may be placed with insurers with a Best’s rating of B+:VII. Any exception must be approved by the County.

Coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits until after forty-five (45) calendar days’ prior written notice has been given to the County.

If at any time any of the foregoing policies fail to meet minimum requirements, the Contractor shall, upon notice to that effect from the County, promptly obtain a new policy, and shall submit the same to the County, with the appropriate certificates and endorsements, for approval.

	E.	Subcontractors. The Contractor shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its policies, or shall furnish separate certificates of insurance and policy endorsements for each subcontractor. Insurance coverages provided by subcontractors instead of the Contractor as evidence of compliance with the insurance requirements of this Agreement shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein.

County Non-discrimination. It is the policy of the County to reject discrimination which denies equal treatment to any individual because of his or her race, creed, color, national origin, families with children, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, age, honorably discharged veteran or military status, or the presence of any sensory, mental, or physical disability or the use of a trained dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability as provided in Washington’s Law against Discrimination, Chapter 49.60 RCW, and the Snohomish County Human Rights Ordinance, Chapter 2.460 SCC. These laws protect against specific forms of discrimination in employment, credit transactions, public accommodation, housing, county facilities and services, and county contracts.

The Contractor shall comply with the substantive requirements of Chapter 2.460 SCC, which are incorporated herein by this reference. Execution of this Agreement constitutes a certification by the Contractor of the Contractor's compliance with the requirements of Chapter 2.460 SCC. If the Contractor is found to have violated this provision, or to have furnished false or misleading information in an investigation or proceeding conducted pursuant to this Agreement or Chapter 2.460 SCC, this Agreement may be subject to a declaration of default and termination at the County's discretion. This provision shall not affect the Contractor's obligations under other federal, state, or local laws against discrimination.

Federal Non-discrimination. Snohomish County assures that no persons shall on the grounds of race, color, national origin, or sex as provided by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub. L. No. 88-352), as amended, and the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 (Pub. L. No. 100-259) be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any County sponsored program or activity. Snohomish County further assures that every effort will be made to ensure nondiscrimination in all of its programs and activities, whether those programs and activities are federally funded or not.

	A.	General Civil Rights Provisions: The Contractor agrees to comply with pertinent statutes, Executive Orders and such rules as are promulgated to ensure that no person shall, on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability be excluded from participating in any activity conducted with or benefiting from Federal assistance. This provision binds the Contractor and sub tier contractors from the bid solicitation period through the completion of the contract. This provision is in addition to that required of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

	B.	Title VI Solicitation Notice: The Snohomish County Airport, in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252, 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d to 2000d-4) and the Regulations, hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that any contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises will be afforded full and fair opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in consideration for an award.

	C.	Compliance with Nondiscrimination Requirements: During the performance of this contract, the Contractor, for itself, its assignees, its consultants, its subcontractors and successors (hereinafter collectively referred to as contractor) in interest agrees as follows:

	i.	Compliance with Regulations. The Contractor will comply with the Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts And Authorities, as they may be amended from time to time, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract as Addendum D. 

	ii.	Non-discrimination. The Contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment.  The Contractor will not participate directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities, including employment practices when the contract covers any activity, project, or program set forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR part 21. 

	iii.	Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment. If subcontracts applicable, in all solicitations, either by competitive bidding, or negotiation made by the Contractor for work to be performed under a subcontract, each potential subcontractor will be notified by the Contractor of the Contractor’s obligations under this contract and the Nondiscrimination Acts And Authorities on the grounds of race, color, or national origin.  

	iv.	Information and Reports. The Contractor will provide all information and reports required by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the County or the Federal Aviation Administration to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Nondiscrimination Acts And Authorities and instructions.  Where any information required of a contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish the information, the contractor will so certify to the sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration, as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.

	v.	Sanctions for Noncompliance. In the event of a Contractor’s noncompliance with the Nondiscrimination provisions of this contract, the County will impose such contract sanctions as it or the Federal Aviation Administration may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to:

		a.	Withholding payments to the contractor under the contract until the Contractor complies; and/or

		b.	Cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part.

	vi.	Incorporation of Provisions. The Contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs one through six in every subcontract, if any.  The Contractor will take action with respect to any subcontract as the County or the Federal Aviation Administration may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance.  Provided, that if the Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with litigation by a subcontractor, the contractor may request the County to enter into any litigation to protect the interests of the County.  In addition, the contractor may request the United States to enter into the litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

Employment of County Employees. SCC 2.50.075, “Restrictions on future employment of County employees,” imposes certain restrictions on the subsequent employment and compensation of County employees. The Contractor represents and warrants to the County that it does not at the time of execution of this Agreement, and that it shall not during the term of this Agreement, employ a former or current County employee in violation of SCC 2.50.075. For breach or violation of these representations and warranties, the County shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without liability.

Compliance with Other Laws. The Contractor shall comply with all other applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations in performing this Agreement.

Compliance with Grant Terms and Conditions. The Contractor shall comply with any and all conditions, terms, and requirements of any federal, state, or other grant, if any, that wholly or partially funds the Contractor’s work hereunder.

[bookmark: OLE_LINK1][bookmark: OLE_LINK2]Prohibition of Contingency Fee Arrangements. The Contractor warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Contractor, to solicit or secure this Agreement and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Contractor, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gifts, or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, the County shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without liability or, in its discretion, to deduct from the Agreement price or consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or contingent fee.

Force Majeure. If either party is unable to perform any of its obligations under this Agreement as a direct result of an unforeseeable event beyond that party’s reasonable control, including but not limited to an act of war, act of nature (including but not limited to earthquake and flood), embargo, riot, sabotage, labor shortage or dispute (despite due diligence in obtaining the same), or governmental restriction imposed subsequent to execution of the Agreement (collectively, a “force majeure event”), the time for performance shall be extended by the number of days directly attributable to the force majeure event. Both parties agree to use their best efforts to minimize the effects of such failures or delays.

Suspension of Work. The County may, at any time, instruct the Contractor in writing to stop work effective immediately, or as directed, pending either further instructions from the County to resume the work or a notice from the County of breach or termination under Section 21 of this Agreement.

Non-Waiver of Breach; Termination.

	A.	The failure of the County to insist upon strict performance of any of the covenants or agreements contained in this Agreement, or to exercise any option conferred by this Agreement, in one or more instances shall not be construed to be a waiver or relinquishment of those covenants, agreements or options, and the same shall be and remain in full force and effect.

	B.	If the Contractor breaches any of its obligations hereunder, and fails to cure the same within ten (10) business days of written notice to do so by the County, the County may terminate this Agreement, in which case the County shall pay the Contractor only for the services and corresponding reimbursable expenses, if any, accepted by the County in accordance with Sections 3 and 8 hereof.

	C.	The County may terminate this Agreement upon ten (10) business days’ written notice to the Contractor for any reason other than stated in subparagraph b above, in which case payment shall be made in accordance with Sections 3 and 8 hereof for the services and corresponding reimbursable expenses, if any, reasonably and directly incurred by the Contractor in performing this Agreement prior to receipt of the termination notice.

	D.	Termination by the County hereunder shall not affect the rights of the County as against the Contractor provided under any other section or paragraph herein. The County does not, by exercising its rights under this Section 21, waive, release, or forego any legal remedy for any violation, breach or non-performance of any of the provisions of this Agreement. At its sole option, the County may deduct from the final payment due the Contractor (i) any damages, expenses or costs arising out of any such violations, breaches, or non-performance and (ii) any other setoffs or credits including, but not limited to, the costs to the County of selecting and compensating another contactor to complete the work of the Agreement.

Notices. All notices and other communications shall be in writing and shall be sufficient if given, and shall be deemed given, on the date on which the same has been mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:



If to the County:		Snohomish County Paine Field Airport

					9901 24th PL W, Suite A

				Everett, Washington 98201

				Attention:	Joshua Marcy

						Airport Director



and to:				Snohomish County Purchasing Division

				3000 Rockefeller Avenue, M/S 507

				Everett, Washington 98201

				Attention:	Purchasing Manager



If to the Contractor:		26328 79th Ave S, Kent WA 98032

								Attention:	Clean Harbors Environmental Services, Inc 

			Field Services Division G7	

The County or the Contractor may, by notice to the other given hereunder, designate any further or different addresses to which subsequent notices or other communications shall be sent.

Confidentiality. The Contractor shall not disclose, transfer, sell or otherwise release to any third party any confidential information gained by reason of or otherwise in connection with the Contractor’s performance under this Agreement. The Contractor may use such information solely for the purposes necessary to perform its obligations under this Agreement. The Contractor shall promptly give written notice to the County of any judicial proceeding seeking disclosure of such information.

Public Records Act. This Agreement and all public records associated with this Agreement shall be available from the County for inspection and copying by the public where required by the Public Records Act, Chapter 42.56 RCW (the “Act”). To the extent that public records then in the custody of the Contractor are needed for the County to respond to a request under the Act, as determined by the County, the Contractor agrees to make them promptly available to the County. If the Contractor considers any portion of any record provided to the County under this Agreement, whether in electronic or hard copy form, to be protected from disclosure under law, the Contractor shall clearly identify any specific information that it claims to be confidential or proprietary. If the County receives a request under the Act to inspect or copy the information so identified by the Contractor and the County determines that release of the information is required by the Act or otherwise appropriate, the County’s sole obligations shall be to notify the Contractor (a) of the request and (b) of the date that such information will be released to the requester unless the Contractor obtains a court order to enjoin that disclosure pursuant to RCW 42.56.540. If the Contractor fails to timely obtain a court order enjoining disclosure, the County will release the requested information on the date specified.

The County has, and by this section assumes, no obligation on behalf of the Contractor to claim any exemption from disclosure under the Act. The County shall not be liable to the Contractor for releasing records not clearly identified by the Contractor as confidential or proprietary. The County shall not be liable to the Contractor for any records that the County releases in compliance with this section or in compliance with an order of a court of competent jurisdiction.

Interpretation. This Agreement and each of the terms and provisions of it are deemed to have been explicitly negotiated by the parties. The language in all parts of this Agreement shall, in all cases, be construed according to its fair meaning and not strictly for or against either of the parties hereto. The captions and headings of this Agreement are used only for convenience and are not intended to affect the interpretation of the provisions of this Agreement. This Agreement shall be construed so that wherever applicable the use of the singular number shall include the plural number, and vice versa, and the use of any gender shall be applicable to all genders.

Complete Agreement. The Contractor was selected through the County’s RFP identified in Section 1. The RFP and the Contractor’s response are incorporated herein by this reference. To the extent of any inconsistency among this Agreement, the RFP, and the Contractor’s response, this Agreement shall govern. To the extent of any inconsistency between the RFP and the Contractor’s response, the RFP shall govern.

Conflicts between Attachments and Text. Should any conflicts exist between any attached exhibit or schedule and the text or main body of this Agreement, the text or main body of this Agreement shall prevail.

No Third-Party Beneficiaries. The provisions of this Agreement are for the exclusive benefit of the County and the Contractor. This Agreement shall not be deemed to have conferred any rights, express or implied, upon any third parties.

Governing Law; Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Washington. The venue of any action arising out of this Agreement shall be in the Superior Court of the State of Washington, in and for Snohomish County.

Severability. Should any clause, phrase, sentence, or paragraph of this agreement be declared invalid or void, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

Authority. Each signatory to this Agreement represents that he or she has full and sufficient authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the County or the Contractor, as the case may be, and that upon execution of this Agreement it shall constitute a binding obligation of the County or the Contractor, as the case may be.

Survival. Those provisions of this Agreement that by their sense and purpose should survive expiration or termination of the Agreement shall so survive.

Execution in Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same Agreement.



SNOHOMISH COUNTY:	______________________________:



__________________________________	_________________________________

County Executive	 Date	______________________	 Date

	_____________________________



Approved as to insurance

and indemnification provisions:	Approved as to form only:





__________________________________	_________________________________

Risk Management	 Date	Legal Counsel to the Contractor	 Date



Approved as to form only:



__________________________________

Deputy Prosecuting Attorney	 Date
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AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

WITH Clean Harbors

(July 2013 edition)	Page 1 of XX

AFFF ARFF Processes and Procedures 

1)  Job safety Brief to go over required PPE and all hazardous associated with work within the site. Customers are welcome to attend.



2) Site setup before operations. 



a) Secondary containment set up 

b) Set up hoses and double chemical diaphragm pump for pumping out of AFFF pure

c) Stage Vacuum truck and ensure the defoamer is in sprayer bottles 

d) Stage Totes or other containers used during pumping out of ARFF



3) Pump out operations of AFFF into totes

a) If available allow the AFFF pure product to gravity feed into totes

b) Use diaphragm pump to slowly transfer the AFFF pure product into totes

c) Chemical hose will be used during transferring of AFFF product into totes



4) Triple rinse out ARFF.

a) Use hot water and defoamer 

b) Have a truck drive around 

c) Pump out waste into vacuum truck

d) Repeat 2 more times



5) Transportation of waste

a) AFFF pure product stored in totes and taken to disposal facility, if required

b) AFFF Rinsate stored in totes and taken to disposal facility 



· Slow pumping to limit agitating the foam.

· Defoamer added 2–5-gallon pails per 500-gallon fire truck roughly

· Level C PPE and respiratory needed during pumping operations 







Schedule A

Scope of Services





A - 1

Lump Sum pricing per RFP-25-0424BC ARFF Truck Cleaning:



Total cost for rinses per Section 5.A Scope of Services (all three vehicles, including third rinse)        $62,963.07

Sampling and Disposal of all Non-Hazardous Rinsate per Section 5.E Scope of Services           	$16,088.00

Additional service (Disposal of PPE and Rags from ARFF clean out)                                            	 $1,330.04

Sampling and Disposal of all Hazardous Rinsate (if required) per Section 5.E Scope of Services        	$16,088.00 



Disposal of AFFF Concentrate (if required)							$47.908.00











Schedule B

Compensation



CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES	- 2 –

(Contractor's Name)

B - 1



Addendum D



Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities

During the performance of this contract, the Contractor, for itself, its consultants, its subcontractors, its assignees, and successors in interest agrees to comply with the following non-discrimination statutes and authorities, as they may be amended from time to time and which are incorporated herein by reference, including but not limited to:

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin); 

49 CFR part 21 (Non-discrimination In Federally-Assisted Programs of The Department of Transportation—Effectuation of Title VI of The Civil Rights Act of 1964); 

The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 U.S.C. § 4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects); 

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR part 27;

The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on the basis of age);

Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 USC § 471, Section 47123), as amended, (prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex); 

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage and applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms “programs or activities” to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally funded or not);

Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131 – 12189) as implemented by Department of Transportation regulations at 49 CFR parts 37 and 38;

The Federal Aviation Administration’s Non-discrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123) (prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex);

Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations, which ensures non-discrimination against minority populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations;

Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination because of limited English proficiency (LEP).  To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100);

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq).Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination because of limited English proficiency (LEP).  To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100).












Andrew C. Rardin, CM| Airport Environmental and Wildlife Manager
Paine Field |Snohomish County Airport

9901 24 pL W, Suite A, Everett, WA 98204

0:425-388-5115 | andrew.rardin@snoco.org

NOTICE: All emails and attachments sent to and from Snohomish County are public records and may be subject to disclosure pursuant to
the Public Records Act (RCW 42.

From: Keene, Patricia <Keene.Patricia@cleanharbors.com>

Sent: Tuesday, May 6, 2025 9:33 AM

To: Rardin, Andrew <andrew.rardin@co.snohomish.wa.us>; Cole, Joshua
<Joshua.Cole@co.snohomish.wa.us>

Cc: Frank, Dawson <Dawson.Frank@co.snohomish.wa.us>; Daly, Josh

<daly.josh@cleanharbors.com>
Subject: RE: Contract Documents Updated

CAUTION. This email originated from outside of this organization. Please exercise
caution with links and attachments.

(-]

Andrew,
Attached is your COlI, please let me know if this is sufficient, per your requirements.
Thank you,

Patty

From: Keene, Patricia

Sent: Tuesday, May 6, 2025 8:03 AM

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

Yes, not a problem
Thank you,

Patty

From: Rardin, Andrew <andrew.rardin@co.snohomish.wa.us>
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Sent: Tuesday, May 6, 2025 7:56 AM
To: Keene, Patricia <Keene.Patricia@cleanharbors.com>; Cole, Joshua

<Joshua.Cole@co.snohomish.wa.us>

Cc: Frank, Dawson <Dawson.Frank@co.snohomish.wa.us>; Daly, Josh

<daly.josh@cleanharbors.com>
Subject: RE: Contract Documents Updated

Thanks for the quick response! Also, can you have your insurance carrier send over the
appropriate paperwork? | will need that for our Risk Manager to approve in the routing for
County Council Approval.

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

Sent: Tuesday, May 6, 2025 7:51 AM

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

1
caution with links and attachments.

No problem Andrew, please see updated attached.
Thank you,

Patty

From: Rardin, Andrew <andrew.rardin@co.snohomish.wa.us>
Sent: Tuesday, May 6, 2025 7:15 AM

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

Importance: High

Good Morning Patty

I’'m still waiting on confirmation of the contract from legal, hope to have that by end of day.

I noticed a couple things in my review. In the scope of work, Schedule A, can you modify
“AFFF pure product stored in totes and taken to disposal facility”. Can we add “if required”.
That work should be done and paid for by the States vendor as part of the “Take Back”
Program. Last thing, Schedule B is blank. If you want to cut and paste the following (from
your proposal) into Schedule B, that works for us.

Total cost for rinses per Section 5.A Scope of Services (all three vehicles, including third rinse) 62,963.07
Sampling and Disposal of all Non-Hazardous Rinsate per Section 5.E Scope of Services
16,088.00

Additional service (Disposal of PPE and Rags from ARFF clean out)
1,330.04

Sampling and Disposal of all Hazardous Rinsate (if required) per Section 5.E Scope of Services 16,088.00
Disposal of AFFF Concentrate (if required)
47,908.00

Also, | can make those changes to the agreement if it makes it faster. Just let me know.

Thanks

Andrew C. Rardin, CM| Airport Environmental and Wildlife Manager
Paine Field |Snohomish County Airport

9901 24™ PL W, Suite A, Everett, WA 98204

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

Sent: Monday, May 5, 2025 2:55 PM

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

Attached is the document, with the scope inserted and the NTE dollar amount. Please
forward us the version you need signed when it is available and Mr. Paul Van Der Bosch
will our signee, as VP for Clean Harbors.

Thank you,

Patty Keene

Senior Technical Account Manager, PNW Region
Clean Harbors Environmental Services
206-258-0901

keene.patricia@cleanharbors.com
Emergency Response # 1-800-OIL-TANK or 1-800-645-8265

From: Rardin, Andrew <andrew.rardin@co.snohomish.wa.us>

Sent: Thursday, May 1, 2025 7:02 AM

To: Keene, Patricia <Keene.Patricia@cleanharbors.com>; Cole, Joshua
<Joshua.Cole@co.snohomish.wa.us>

Cc: Frank, Dawson <Dawson.Frank@co.snohomish.wa.us>

Subject: RE: Contract Documents Updated

Good Morning Patty

Appreciate the update, please have your legal team complete the review as soon as
possible. We need to keep things moving along to stay on schedule.

Thanks

Andrew C. Rardin, CM| Airport Environmental and Wildlife Manager
Paine Field |Snohomish County Airport

9901 24t pL W, Suite A, Everett, WA 98204

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

Sent: Monday, April 21, 2025 8:54 AM

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

Just an update, we are finalizing the document, we have our legal reviewing one last time, |
am hoping to get this back to you by Wed this week. My apologies on the delay.

Thank you,

Patty

From: Rardin, Andrew <andrew.rardin@co.snohomish.wa.us>

Sent: Tuesday, April 15, 2025 8:22 AM

To: Keene, Patricia <Keene.Patricia@cleanharbors.com>; Cole, Joshua
<Joshua.Cole@co.snohomish.wa.us>

Subject: RE: Contract Documents Updated

Importance: High

Good Morning Patty

I’'m only in the office today and tomorrow, then off till end of month. To remain on schedule
I need the contract documents filled out with scope and fee back from you today, as early
as possible. The documents were attached to my email last Thursday.

If you have any questions please call my cell 425-508-7472.
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

From: Rardin, Andrew
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Sent: Thursday, April 10, 2025 9:44 AM

To: Keene, Patricia <Keene.Patricia@cleanharbors.com>; Cole, Joshua
<Joshua.Cole@co.snohomish.wa.us>

Subject: Contract Documents Updated

Importance: High

Good Morning Patty

I had some time to fill in some of the blanks, but need for you to add in the details that |
have highlighted in the document. If possible, can you send this back to me by close of
business next Monday? After | receive your information | need legal to review it one last
time and then send it back to you for signature. After that, it's about a 4 week approval
process for our Council.

I’m on holiday from April 16 to May 1, so my goal is to have your signed documents in the
pipeline for Council approval by next Thursday.

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
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